
COMMISSIONERS

Anna Domek – District 1 
Heidy Kellison – District 4
Karleen Jakowski – County of 
Yolo 

Sally Brown – District 2 
Melissa Roberts – District 5
Jim Provenza, Chair – Board of 
Supervisors 
Lucas Frerichs, Alternate Chair- 
Board of Supervisors

Jenn Rexroad – District 3
Garth Lewis – Yolo County Office of 
Education 
Nichole Arnold – Children with Special 
Needs 

AGENDA 
 

May 10, 2023 
3:00pm-5:00pm 

Mary L. Stephens Davis Branch Library, Blanchard Room 
315 E. 14th Street, Davis, CA 95616 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

1. 
 

Chair Call to Order

2. Chair Welcome and Introduction of New District 1 Commissioner 

3. Chair Roll Call  

4. Chair Consider Approval of the Agenda 

5. Chair Opportunity for Commissioners to state Conflict and Recusal 

6. Public Public Comment

CONSENT AGENDA
 
Executive Director recommends approval of Consent Agenda Items 7-10

General Administrative Function

7. Chair Approve First 5 Yolo Commission Meeting Minutes from 03/08/23

8. Chair Receive Sponsorship Fund Allocations Report (Friends of Davis Public 
Library, Yolo Juneteenth Celebration) 

9. Staff Accept Report on Quarter 3 Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Funded Partner 
Progress 

10. Staff Approve $43,750 Increase to Northern California Children’s Therapy 
Center’s and $11,000 Increase to CommuniCare Health Center’s Help Me 
Grow Contracts effective April 1, 2023 and Funded by Mental Health 
Services Act  



REGULAR AGENDA           Presentation/Discussion/Possible Action

11.     
 

Executive Director Receive Presentation on Yolo County Library Children’s 
Services  

5 minutes

12. Executive Director Public Hearing: Accept the First 5 California Annual 
Report for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

5 minutes

13. Management 
Services Officer

Accept Report on Part 2 of Fiscal Half-Year 1 2022/2023 
Performance Measures

10 minutes

14. Executive Director First 5 Yolo Childcare Recovery Package American 
Rescue Plan Act Project: Authorize Subaward Agreement 
to the City of Winters, up to $122,000 and to Winters Joint 
Unified School District, up to $40,500

10 minutes

15. Executive Director Authorize Contract to Yolo County Children’s Alliance for 
Child Welfare Services Alternative Response Grant up to 
$161,818 through June 30, 2024, effective May 1, 2023 

10 minutes

16. Deputy Director Accept Quarter 3 Fiscal Year 22-23 Revenue and 
Expenditure Year-to-Date Summary Report 

10 minutes

17. Executive Director Receive Strategic Planning Update and Review Draft 
Components 

30 minutes

18. Deputy Director Review Working Assumptions for the First 5 Yolo Fiscal 
Year 2023/2024-2027/2028 Long-Term Financial Plan 

10 minutes

19. Executive Director Review Proposed Funding Plan FY23/24 10 minutes

20. Executive Director Executive Director Report 10 minutes

21. Commissioners Commissioner Reports 10 minutes

22. Chair Adjournment

 
Next meeting scheduled: 

Commission Meeting 
June 14, 2023 

International House  
10 College Park, Davis, CA 95616  

 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted May 4, 2023, by 5:00 PM at the following 
places: 

1) On the bulletin board at the East entrance of the Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court Street, 
Woodland, California 95695 

2) At www.first5yolo.org, the website for First 5 Yolo, and the First 5 Yolo Offices, 2779 Del Rio Pl, Unit A, 
Davis, California, 95618 

If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  Persons seeking an alternative format should 
contact First 5 Yolo for more information.  In addition, a person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, in order to participate in a public meeting should telephone or otherwise contact the First 5 Yolo as soon as possible and preferably at least 24 
hours prior to a meeting.  First 5 Yolo may be reached at telephone number 530-669-2475 or at the following address: First 5 Yolo, 2779 Del Rio Pl Unit A, 
Davis, CA 95618. 



Agenda Item #07 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                        Attachments  

Agenda Item- Approve First 5 Yolo Commission Meeting Minutes from 03/08/23

Background
 
Final minutes from the First 5 Yolo Commission Meeting.  

Executive Director Overview
 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission held a regularly scheduled meeting on 
March 08, 2023, at International House-Davis. 

Additional Information and attachments
Draft Meeting Minutes are attached to this item as Attachment A.
 
The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be held June 14, 2023 at 
International House-Davis, 10 College Park, Davis, CA, from 3:00-5:00PM.   
 
Action Requested 
 
Approve minutes as submitted or propose edits. 
 

 



03/08/2023 Page 1 of 7

The First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission met on the 8th day of March, 2023 at International-
House Davis, Community room (10 College Park, Davis, CA 95616)

Commissioners in Attendance: 

Jim Provenza, Sally Brown, Karleen Jakowski, Melissa Roberts, Garth Lewis, Heidy Kellison, Jenn Rexroad, 
Lucas Frerichs

Staff in Attendance: 

Gina Daleiden, Victoria Zimmerle, Rachel McFarland, Melina Ortigas, Fawn Montagna

Public in Attendance: 

Justine Jiminez, Marianne Estes

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA 

Item #1: Call to order

J. Provenza called the meeting to order at: 3:05 pm.

Item #2: Roll Call

V. Zimmerle took a voice roll call.

Absent: Nicole Arnold

Item #3: Approval of Agenda 

Approve Agenda

Motion: G. Lewis Second: J. Rexroad

Motion carried unanimously.

Item #4: Opportunity for Commissioners to state Conflict and Recusal

None.

Item #5: Public Comment

None.

Item #6: Approve First 5 Yolo Commission Meeting Minutes from 1/11/2023

Item #7: Receive Sponsorship Fund Allocations Report (West Sacramento Home Run, City of West 
Sacramento: Home Run Family Financial Wellness and Resource Fair

Item #8: Authorize One-Time Payment for Management Services Officer for Retro-Wages Covering 4 Pay 
Periods (November and December 2022) in the Amount of $674.88 to Align January 2023 Reclass Action 
to Annual Review Date

Approve consent agenda items 6-8. 

Item 07: Attachment A

Gina Daleiden, Victoria Zimmerle, Rachel McFarland, Melina Ortigas, Fawn MontagnaGina Daleiden, Victoria Zimmerle, Rachel McFarland, Melina Ortigas, Fawn Montagna

pm.

Item #3: Approval of Agenda Item #3: Approval of Agenda 

SecondSecond: : J. RexroadJ. Rexroad

Motion carried unanimously.Motion carried unanimously.

Item #4: Opportunity for Commissioners to state Conflict and RecusalItem #4: Opportunity for Commissioners to state Conflict and Recusal

Item #5: Public CommentItem #5: Public Comment

pprove First 5 Yolo Commission Meeting Minutes pprove First 5 Yolo Commission Meeting Minutes 



03/08/2023 Page 2 of 7

Motion: M. Roberts Second: G. Lewis

Motion carried unanimously.

Item #9: Election of F5Y Commission Officers

N. Arnold (in absentia) is willing to remain Vice Chair for another year. S. Brown is willing to serve as 
Treasurer for another year.

Re-Elect N. Arnold to serve as Vice Chair and S. Brown to serve as Treasurer for an additional term. 

Motion: M. Roberts Second: G. Lewis

Motion carried unanimously.

Item #10: Accept Fiscal Half Year 1 2022-2023 CHILD Project: Road to Resilience and Early Learning 
Program Performance Measure Report

G. Daleiden noted that aggregate data will be presented by the program managers and thanked First 5 
Yolo’s partners in these funded programs.

M. Ortigas reported on performance measures for CHILD Project: Road to Resilience (R2R) and provided 
a history of the timeline for R2R. M. Ortigas noted that R2R participants reported better outcomes in the 
reporting period on key performance measures (KPMs) compared to CommuniCare’s (CCHC) general 
population, noting the key role that home visits play in achieving these improvements. Vaccination rates 
improved from the same time last year. Participants who reduced or abstained from substance use 
decreased slightly since last year; M. Ortigas noted that this is partly due to improvement in how data 
associated with this measure is collected and reported. M. Ortigas noted that there was an increase in 
substance use during the COVID pandemic.

100% of families enrolled in R2R, who received 6 or more home visits, avoided the need for entry into 
Child Welfare Services. K. Jakowski noted how critical this performance is; early intervention and help 
with substance use not only improves the health of the child but also prevents the child from needing to 
enter Child Welfare and potentially removed from the home. Providing early support to mothers and 
families improves all outcomes for the child’s health and continuing development.

R2R is reaching children at highest risk: 72% of children enrolled in R2R scored at-risk for developmental 
or behavioral delays, as compared to 30% of the general population. M. Ortigas noted that mothers who 
are engaged prenatally are more likely to stay connected to other home visiting services after giving 
birth.

G. Daleiden shared that F5Y was awarded the Alternative Response contract from Child Welfare Services 
for early prevention services in Yolo County, and that this additional funding will allow for additional 
training to better serve Black families, which are currently underserved in Yolo County but 
overrepresented within Child Welfare. K. Jakowski also noted the upcoming opportunity to leverage 
Title IV-E funds, allowable for the first time, through the Families First Prevention Services Act (FFPSA) to 
continue funding R2R’s services.

Item 07: Attachment A

Elect N. Arnold to serve as Vice Chair and S. Brown to serve as Treasurer for an additional termElect N. Arnold to serve as Vice Chair and S. Brown to serve as Treasurer for an additional term

023 CHILD Project: Road to Resilience and Early Learning 023 CHILD Project: Road to Resilience and Early Learning 

G. Daleiden noted that aggregate data will be presented by the program manageG. Daleiden noted that aggregate data will be presented by the program managers and thanked First 5 

M. Ortigas reported on performance measures for CHILD Project: Road to Resilience (R2R) and provided M. Ortigas reported on performance measures for CHILD Project: Road to Resilience (R2R) and provided 
M. Ortigas noted that R2RM. Ortigas noted that R2R participants reported better participants reported better 

key performance measures (KPMs) key performance measures (KPMs) compared tocompared to CommuniCareCommuniCare
the key role that home visits play in achieving these improvements. Vaccination rates the key role that home visits play in achieving these improvements. Vaccination rates 

improved from the same time last year. Parimproved from the same time last year. Participants who reduced or abstained from substance use ticipants who reduced or abstained from substance use 
decreased slightly since last year; M. Ortigas noted that this is partly due to improvement decreased slightly since last year; M. Ortigas noted that this is partly due to improvement 
associated with this measure is collected and reportedassociated with this measure is collected and reported. M. O. M. Ortigas noted that
substance use during the COVID pandemic.substance use during the COVID pandemic.

100% of families enrolled in R2R100% of families enrolled in R2R, , who received 6 or more home visitswho received 6 or more home visits
Child Welfare Services. K. Jakowski noted how critical this performance isChild Welfare Services. K. Jakowski noted how critical this performance is

substance use not only improves the health of the child but also prevents the child from needing to substance use not only improves the health of the child but also prevents the child from needing to 
enter Child Welfare and potentially removed from the home. Providing early support to mothers and enter Child Welfare and potentially removed from the home. Providing early support to mothers and 
families improves all outcomes for the child’s health andfamilies improves all outcomes for the child’s health and

R2R is reaching children at highest risk: 72% of children enrolled in R2R scored atR2R is reaching children at highest risk: 72% of children enrolled in R2R scored at
or behavioral delays, as compared to 30% of the general population. M. Ortigas noted that mothers who or behavioral delays, as compared to 30% of the general population. M. Ortigas noted that mothers who 
are engaged prenatallyare engaged prenatally are more likely to stay connected to other home visiting services after giving are more likely to stay connected to other home visiting services after giving 



03/08/2023 Page 3 of 7

Commissioners discussed and asked questions about program outcomes, identification of opportunities 
to expand the target population for both R2R and Welcome Baby, and program implementation 
practices.

F. Montagna reported on First 5 Yolo’s IMPACT Early Learning Programs, which serve childcare providers 
in Yolo County with an emphasis on Family, Friend, Neighbor (FFN) providers who have been historically 
underserved. Services under IMPACT included a variety of service durations and focus areas (e.g. early 
literacy, positive caregiver interactions, incorporating art strategies, etc.). In Fiscal Half Year 1 2022-2023
(FHY1 22-23), IMPACT Funded Partners worked together to support childcare providers in accessing 
services across multiple agencies and programs based on their individual needs and desires, which lead 
to better outcomes for all participants. Providers can participate in one-on-one, group coaching, or 
receive regular communication and updates on resources and learning opportunities. F. Montagna 
noted that IMPACT has targeted outreach to underserved communities, including non-English families
and those providers serving Dual Language Learning (DLL) children. 

After participating in an IMPACT coaching cohort, 100% of providers talk, read, and sing more often with 
the children in their care. 100% of providers met at least one goal defined in their Quality Improvement 
Plan, and 16 providers received training on incorporating art through a trauma informed lens via the 
Davis Arts Center.

Several FFN’s enrolled in IMPACT are actively pursuing licensure and receiving technical assistance and 
support through the coaching process. FFN’s continue to strengthen their peer-to-peer support 
networks and see themselves as valued professionals. Providers have built relationships with Yolo 
County family-serving agencies, and all children receiving childcare during FFN coaching cohorts receive 
developmental screening. 

Commissioners discussed and asked questions about outreach and identification of childcare providers 
within the County, collaboration with other childcare focused agencies within the County, and 
sustainability of future funding for both IMPACT Early Learning Programs and R2R. 

G. Daleiden provided background on the original grants funding the initiatives presented and Welcome 
Baby, and highlighted that funding may change to build longer-term sustainability for the programs. The 
Commission then made final remarks pertaining to First 5 Yolo initiatives. J. Provenza noted 211 services 
may also provide an opportunity to outreach and identification for First 5 Yolo programs and 
additionally, encouraged staff to apply for increased Cannabis Tax funding to support effective 
programs. L. Frerichs inquired about support Commissioners can offer locally or at the state level to 
advocate sustainability for program funding. H. Kellison noted it may be helpful for Commissioners to 
meet with the local City County members to discuss and advocate.  

No public comment.

Accept Fiscal Half Year 1 2022-2023 CHILD Project: Road to Resilience and Early Learning Program 
Performance Measure Report.

Motion: H. Kellison Second: M. Roberts

Motion carried unanimously.

Item 07: Attachment A

underserved. Services under IMPACT included a variety of service durations and focus areas (e.g. early underserved. Services under IMPACT included a variety of service durations and focus areas (e.g. early 
iscal iscal HHalf alf 

Funded Partners worked together to support childcare providers in accessing Funded Partners worked together to support childcare providers in accessing 
services across multiple agencies and programs based on their individual needs and desires, which lead services across multiple agencies and programs based on their individual needs and desires, which lead 

in onein one--onon-oneone, group coaching, or , group coaching, or 
receive regular communication and updates on resources and learning opportunitiesreceive regular communication and updates on resources and learning opportunities. F. Montagna . F. Montagna 
noted that IMPACT has targeted outreach to underserved communities, includinnoted that IMPACT has targeted outreach to underserved communities, including nonnon--EnglishEnglish families

childrenchildren. 

After participating in an IMPACT coaching cohort, 100% of providers talk, read, and sing more often with After participating in an IMPACT coaching cohort, 100% of providers talk, read, and sing more often with 
the children in their care. 100% of providers met at least one goal defined in their Quality Improvement the children in their care. 100% of providers met at least one goal defined in their Quality Improvement 

incorporating art through a trauma informed lens via the incorporating art through a trauma informed lens via the 

FFN’s enrolled in IMPACT are actively pursuing licensure and receivFFN’s enrolled in IMPACT are actively pursuing licensure and receivinging
support through the coaching process. FFN’s continue to strengthen their peersupport through the coaching process. FFN’s continue to strengthen their peer
networks and see themselves as valued professionals. Providers have built relationships with Yolo networks and see themselves as valued professionals. Providers have built relationships with Yolo 

serving agencies, and all children recserving agencies, and all children receiving childcare during FFN coaching cohorts receive eiving childcare during FFN coaching cohorts receive 

Commissioners discussed and asked questions aboutCommissioners discussed and asked questions about outreach and identification of childcare providers outreach and identification of childcare providers 
within the County, collaboration with other childcare focused agencies within the Countycollaboration with other childcare focused agencies within the County
sustainability of future funding for both IMPACT Early Learning Programs and R2Rsustainability of future funding for both IMPACT Early Learning Programs and R2R

G. Daleiden provided background on the original grants funding the initiatives presented and Welcome G. Daleiden provided background on the original grants funding the initiatives presented and Welcome 
Baby, and highlighted that funding may change to build longerBaby, and highlighted that funding may change to build longer
Commission then made final remarks pertaining to First 5 Yolo initiatives. Commission then made final remarks pertaining to First 5 Yolo initiatives. 
may also provide an opportunity to outreach and identification for First 5 Yolo programs and may also provide an opportunity to outreach and identification for First 5 Yolo programs and 

encouraged staff to apply for increased Cannabis Tax fundingencouraged staff to apply for increased Cannabis Tax funding
FrerichsFrerichs inquired about support Commissioners can offer locally or at the state level to inquired about support Commissioners can offer locally or at the state level to 

advocate sustainability for program funding.advocate sustainability for program funding.
meet with the local City County members to discuss and advocate.meet with the local City County members to discuss and advocate.



03/08/2023 Page 4 of 7

Item #11: Receive and Discuss Update on Statewide First 5 Sustainability Planning

Given the fiscal landscape and the potential threat to the 25-year infrastructure and unique work of First 
5, First 5 Association formed a work group of executive directors, staff, and F5A lobbyist to better align 
The First 5 Network (all 58 counties, F5CA, and F5A), and to explore and move forward statewide 
sustainability options. The First 5 Yolo Executive Director serves on this work group.

The Sustainability Workgroup is focused on two parallel pathways, now formally adopted by First 5 
Association and expected as goals over the next year or two:

1. Secure a one-time General Fund allocation from State Budget to offset the impact of Proposition 
31, the California flavored tobacco ban, and declining tobacco tax revenue. Prop 31 was 
supported by First 5 as a public health measure, but the unintended consequence is 
destabilization of First 5’s infrastructure and service provision for early childhood health, 
learning, and prevention strategies across California.

First 5 Association is planning for a one-time, $100 million General Fund allocation request for 
next year’s state budget session. G. Daleiden noted that this request will be presented as a one-
time ask, with the understanding that F5Awill need to return for more funding. The one-time 
budget ask may be for funding over two to three years.  Commissioners discussed the possibility 
of creating a working group comprised of First 5 Commissioners from various counties. H. 
Kellison offered to support this effort.

2. Ensure that local First 5 commissions are recognized and engaged by the state as foundational 
community implementers, intermediaries, fiscal agents, and thought partners for programs, 
policies, and state initiatives that seek to improve child and family outcomes. This includes 
pursuing dedicated funding streams from existing state revenue sources, making local First 5 
commissions eligible recipients to implement these funding streams.

California State Association of Counties (CSAC) has added the sustainability of First 5 to its list of 
Priorities. L. Frerichs noted that CSAC has a working group on funding early childhood development 
programs. First 5 Association views this as an important first step in pursuing a statewide budget 
request and looks forward to a close partnership on this effort.

K. Jakowski noted that she and G. Daleiden are currently working closely on how Help me Grow is 
co-funded in the new 3-year MHSA Plan in anticipation of the unfolding budget challenges related to 
Prop 31.

Item #12: Accept Q2 FY2022-2023 Revenue and Expenditure Summary Report

The Q2 Revenue and Expenditure Summary Report includes all funds received and expended from July 
1, 2022-December 31, 2022, as well as expenses incurred and revenues earned in the defined period 
which were received within the period of availability, though funds may have been received or 
expended after December 31.

Item 07: Attachment A

ly adoptedly adopted

time General Fund allocation from State Budget to offset the impact oftime General Fund allocation from State Budget to offset the impact of
and declining tobacco tax revenue. Pand declining tobacco tax revenue. Prop 31rop 31 was 

supported by First 5 as a public health measure, but the unintended consequencesupported by First 5 as a public health measure, but the unintended consequence is 
destabilization of First 5’s infrastructure and service provision for early childhooddestabilization of First 5’s infrastructure and service provision for early childhood health, health, 
learning, and prevention strategies across California.learning, and prevention strategies across California.

time, $100 million General Fund allocation $100 million General Fund allocation 
G. Daleiden noted that this request will be presented as a oneG. Daleiden noted that this request will be presented as a one
that F5that F5Awill need to return for more funding. The onewill need to return for more funding. The one

budget ask may be for funding over two to three yeartwo to three years.  Commissioners Commissioners 
of creating a working group comprised of First 5 Commissioners from various counties.of creating a working group comprised of First 5 Commissioners from various counties.
Kellison offered to support this effort.

Ensure that local First 5 commissions are recognized and engaged by the state as foundational Ensure that local First 5 commissions are recognized and engaged by the state as foundational 
community implementers, intermediarcommunity implementers, intermediaries, fiscal agents, and thought partners for programs, ies, fiscal agents, and thought partners for programs, 
policies, and state initiatives that seek to improve child and family outcomes. This includes policies, and state initiatives that seek to improve child and family outcomes. This includes 
pursuing dedicated funding streams from existing state revenue sources, making local First 5 pursuing dedicated funding streams from existing state revenue sources, making local First 5 
commissions eligible recipients to implement these funding streams.igible recipients to implement these funding streams.

California State Association of Counties (CSAC) has added the sustainability of First 5 to its list of California State Association of Counties (CSAC) has added the sustainability of First 5 to its list of 
Priorities.Priorities. L. Frerichs noted that CSAC has a working group on funding early childhood development L. Frerichs noted that CSAC has a working group on funding early childhood development 
programs.programs. First 5 Association views this as an important first step in pursuing a statewide budget First 5 Association views this as an important first step in pursuing a statewide budget 
request and looks forward to a close partnership on this effort.request and looks forward to a close partnership on this effort.

K. Jakowski noted that she and G. Daleiden are currently working closely on K. Jakowski noted that she and G. Daleiden are currently working closely on 
in the new 3in the new 3--year MHSA Plan in anticipation of the unfolding budget challenges related to year MHSA Plan in anticipation of the unfolding budget challenges related to 



03/08/2023 Page 5 of 7

V. Zimmerle shared that staff are not recommending any budget updates at this time and that largely, all 
programs and expenditures are in-line with expected costs at this point in the fiscal year. In May, when 
staff bring the Q3 Revenue and Expenditure Summary Report, additional budget updates will be 
recommended to take into account receipt of any pending grants, budget revisions, and other 
modifications.  

1. V. Zimmerle also shared that, to date, staff have not yet received updated Prop 10 Revenue 
Projections which were expected early in the new year.  These updates projections were 
expected to include a better reflection of the impact of the passage of Prop 31 as well as 
updated Birth Projections from the CA Department of Finance which is expected to result in First 
5 Yolo receiving a “true-up” to account for Yolo’s higher relative birth rate from 2019 to 2020 
which is the basis distribution of Prop 10 funding across the State.

The Commission’s projected ending Fund Balance is $2,186,564 which includes all established Reserves 
aligned to the current Long Term Financial Plan which concludes June 30, 2024. In the next item,
Commissioners will consider ending the current Long Term Financial Plan one year early and adopting a 
new Long Term Financial Plan aligned to the new Strategic Plan time horizon.

Commissioners discussed and asked questions.

Accept Q2 FY2022-2023 Revenue and Expenditure Summary Report

Motion: S. Brown Second: M. Roberts

Motion carried unanimously.

Item #13: Approve Alignment of the First 5 Yolo Long Term Financial Plan to new Strategic Plan Time 
Horizon

First 5 Yolo’s current adopted Long Term Financial Plan spans six (6) years and is set to conclude on June 
30, 2024. Reserves and current target balances are set to reflect anticipated Commission needs through 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 only, a shorter time span than a new 5-year Strategic Plan. 

Through the adoption process of a new LTFP, those balances would be revised to better match the term 
of a new Strategic Plan. While the LTFP neither binds nor commits The Commission, it serves as a tool to 
illustrate the likely financial outcomes of a particular course of action or factors affecting the 
environment in which it operates. As the Commission works through its strategic planning process, 
many assumptions in the current LTFP are outdated and may not necessarily reflect any changing 
Commission goals and objectives, which will be defined through the strategic planning process, and the 
climate in which First 5 Yolo is currently operating.

Aligning the LTFP and the Strategic Plan would allow staff to update assumptions, look further ahead, 
and incorporate the goals, objectives, and anticipated investment strategies defined through the 
Strategic Planning Process. To align the Long-Term Financial Plan with the anticipated Strategic Plan, 
staff recommend concluding the current plan one year early (June 30, 2023) and adopting a new 5-year 
plan which would be effective July 1, 2023.

Approve Alignment of the First 5 Yolo Long Term Financial Plan to new Strategic Plan Time Horizon.

Item 07: Attachment A

V. Zimmerle also shared that, to date, staff have not yet received updated Prop 10 Revenue V. Zimmerle also shared that, to date, staff have not yet received updated Prop 10 Revenue 
re expected early in the new year.  These updates projections were re expected early in the new year.  These updates projections were 

expected to include a better reflection of the impact of the passage of Prop 31 as well as expected to include a better reflection of the impact of the passage of Prop 31 as well as 
updated Birth Projections from the CA Department of Finance which updated Birth Projections from the CA Department of Finance which isis expected to result inexpected to result in

up” to account for Yolo’s higher relative birth rate from 2019 to 2020 up” to account for Yolo’s higher relative birth rate from 2019 to 2020 
distribution of Prop 10 funding across the State.distribution of Prop 10 funding across the State.

The Commission’s projected ending Fund Balance is $2,186,564 which includes all established The Commission’s projected ending Fund Balance is $2,186,564 which includes all established Reserves 
aligned to the current Long Term Financial Plan which concludes June 30, 2024. aligned to the current Long Term Financial Plan which concludes June 30, 2024. In the next item,In the next item,
Commissioners will consider ending the current Long Term Financial Plan Commissioners will consider ending the current Long Term Financial Plan one year one year early and adopting a 

Strategic Plan time horizon.Strategic Plan time horizon.

Commissioners discussed and asked questions.Commissioners discussed and asked questions.

2023 Revenue and Expenditure Summary Report2023 Revenue and Expenditure Summary Report

M. Roberts

pprove Alignment of the First 5 Yolo Long Term Financial Plan topprove Alignment of the First 5 Yolo Long Term Financial Plan to

First 5 Yolo’s current adopted Long Term Financial Plan spans six (6) years and is set to conclude on June First 5 Yolo’s current adopted Long Term Financial Plan spans six (6) years and is set to conclude on June 
30, 2024. Reserves and current target balances are set to reflect anticipated Commission needs30, 2024. Reserves and current target balances are set to reflect anticipated Commission needs
Fiscal Year 2023Fiscal Year 2023--2024 only, a shorter time span than a new 52024 only, a shorter time span than a new 5

Through the adoption process of a new LTFP, those balances would be revised to better match the term Through the adoption process of a new LTFP, those balances would be revised to better match the term 
of a new Strategic Plan. While the LTFP neither binds nor commiof a new Strategic Plan. While the LTFP neither binds nor commi
illustrate the likely financial outcomes of a particular course of action or factors affecting the illustrate the likely financial outcomes of a particular course of action or factors affecting the 
environment in which it operates. As the Commission works through its strategic planning process, environment in which it operates. As the Commission works through its strategic planning process, 
many assumptions many assumptions in the current LTFP are outdated and may not necessarily reflect any changing in the current LTFP are outdated and may not necessarily reflect any changing 
Commission goals and objectives, which will be defined through the strategic planning process, and the Commission goals and objectives, which will be defined through the strategic planning process, and the 



03/08/2023 Page 6 of 7

Motion: S. Brown Second: M. Roberts

Motion carried unanimously.

Item #14: Executive Director Report

G. Daleiden updated the Commission on the following:

The SB608 Kids Plates Bill, authored by Sen. Becker of San Mateo, which would route some state 
funding directly to county First 5 Commissions. This funding would be used to help support 
existing programs, with an emphasis on child safety and parent education. The money for this 
bill is partially generated by the purchase of license plates.  Each year First 5 associations would 
be surveyed and given the chance to opt into this funding. Funding will be divided among First 
5’s that opt in. First 5 Yolo could use this funding for home visiting, which includes components 
of safety education for parents. . L. Frerichs has graciously offered to attend a hearing at the 
Capitol to support this legislation. 

F5CA Home Visiting Coordination Grant and Managed Care Plan focus: There are currently 
twenty-two First 5’s that have opted into this newly created region of Counties with Partnership 
Health Plan as their Managed Care Plan. First 5 CA is excited about this strategic use of funds. 
The grant application and development is led by First 5 Sonoma and the grant timeline is 
expected to be extended which will allow for additional time to coordinate. 

The IMPACT RFA, which will be known as IMPACT Legacy with this next and final interaction of 
the grant, is expected in the next few weeks.. Funding for both Home Visiting Coordination and 
IMPACT Legacy are is expected to start July 1, 2023. If funding becomes delayed beyond a July 1 
start date, there will be implications for IMPACT service providers as some funded partner 
agency staff are paid for entirely by this grant.

Strategic Planning next steps: G. Daleiden will meet with consultant, Rafael Gomez, to identify 
stakeholders for focus groups and 1:1 discussions to include F5Y funded partners and other 
stakeholders. G. Daleiden requested that Commissioners email her with any suggestions on 
additional stakeholders who should be engaged. 

Item #15: Commissioner Reports

G. Lewis provided updates on the Roadmap to the Future. Community engagement sessions for the 
Roadmap to the Future were well attended and members of the community were interested and 
involved in the process. Community members particularly noted the need for access to healthcare. G. 
Lewis offered to share the data and learnings from these sessions. The next step will be a county-wide 
needs assessment. The final report for the Roadmap to the Future is planned to be released in late 
summer or early fall.

G. Lewis also noted that on March 20, 2023, there will be an annual Yolo County Elected Leaders & 
Officials Forum at the Yolo County Office of Education and additionally on May 11, 2023 YCOE will host a 
Whole Child Equity Summit primarily focused on TK-12th grade providers in an effort to align early 

Item 07: Attachment A

which which would route would route 
funding directly to county First 5 Commissions. This funding would be used to help support funding directly to county First 5 Commissions. This funding would be used to help support 
existing programs, with an emphasis on child safety and parent education. The money for this existing programs, with an emphasis on child safety and parent education. The money for this 
bill is partially generated by the purchase of license plates.  Each year First 5 associations would bill is partially generated by the purchase of license plates.  Each year First 5 associations would 

e to opt into this funding. Funding will be divided among First e to opt into this funding. Funding will be divided among First 
at opt in. First 5 Yolo could use this funding for home visitingat opt in. First 5 Yolo could use this funding for home visiting, which includes components , which includes components 

L. Frerichs has graciously offered to attend a hearing at the L. Frerichs has graciously offered to attend a hearing at the 

F5CA Home Visiting Coordination Grant and Managed Care PlanF5CA Home Visiting Coordination Grant and Managed Care Plan focus: There are currently 
two First 5’s that have opted intotwo First 5’s that have opted into this newly created region is newly created region of Counties w

Health Plan as their Managed Care PlanHealth Plan as their Managed Care Plan. . First 5 CA is excited First 5 CA is excited about this strategic use of funds. about this strategic use of funds. 
grant application and development grant application and development is is led led by First 5 Sonomaby First 5 Sonoma and the grant timeline is and the grant timeline is 

extended which will allow for additional time to coordinateextended which will allow for additional time to coordinate

, which will be known, which will be known as IMPACT Legacy as IMPACT Legacy with this next and final interaction of 
is expected in the next few weeksis expected in the next few weeks... Funding . Funding for both Home Visiting Coordination and 

T Legacy are T Legacy are is expected to start July 1, 2023.is expected to start July 1, 2023.
start date, there will be implications for IMPACT service providers as start date, there will be implications for IMPACT service providers as 
agency staff are paid for entirely by this grant.agency staff are paid for entirely by this grant.

Strategic Planning nextStrategic Planning next steps:  steps: G. Daleiden G. Daleiden 
stakeholders stakeholders for focus groups and 1:1 discussionfocus groups and 1:1 discussion
stakeholders.stakeholders. G. Daleiden G. Daleiden requested that requested that 
additional stakeholders additional stakeholders who should be engagedwho should be engaged

ommissioner Reportsommissioner Reports

G. Lewis provided updates on the RoadG. Lewis provided updates on the Road
Roadmap to the FutureRoadmap to the Future were well attended and membwere well attended and memb



03/08/2023 Page 7 of 7

learning and care systems. G. Lewis shared flyers and extended an open invitation to F5Y staff and 
Commissioners. 

K. Jakowski shared updates on the status of the development of the new 3-year Mental Health Services 
Act plan. She also shared her desire to strengthen how the County talks about the mental health needs 
of children 0-5 and their families as well as a desire to build on work the Commission has already done 
via Help Me Grow allowing for an even more intensive level of support including Full Service Partnership 
services of 0-5, which is the highest level of support. K. Jakowski also shared current data from Child 
Welfare. 

S. Brown attended the Winters Parent Nursery School meeting at the end of January regarding 
supporting their infrastructure improvement with Childcare ARP funds.  

Item #16: Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 4:57 pm.

Next Commission Meeting scheduled:

May 09, 2023
International House
10 College Park, Davis, CA 95616

Item 07: Attachment A

including Full Service Partnership including Full Service Partnership 
K. Jakowski also shared currentK. Jakowski also shared current data from Child 

S. Brown attended the Winters Parent Nursery School meeting at the end of January regarding S. Brown attended the Winters Parent Nursery School meeting at the end of January regarding 
supporting their infrastructure improvement with Childcare ARP funds.supporting their infrastructure improvement with Childcare ARP funds.    



Agenda Item #08 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

                                             Attachments  

Agenda Item- Receive Sponsorship Fund Allocations Report (Friends of Davis Public Library, Yolo 
Juneteenth Celebration) 

Background

The Sponsorship Fund, established in FY17/18, allows First 5 Yolo’s continued involvement in 
community activities, public awareness of the mission of First 5 Yolo, and support of a variety of 
organizations with a limited cost in dollars and staff/commission time.  Up to $250 may be 
allocated per qualifying event, not to exceed a total of $5,000 per year. 

Per the Sponsorship Policy adopted by the Commission on May 10, 2017, the Executive Director 
and staff review, approve, and process requests on a rolling basis throughout the year.  All recent, 
approved allocations are submitted to the Commission on the Consent Calendar at each regularly 
scheduled Commission meeting. 

Executive Director Overview 

Six Sponsorships have been approved since the start of Fiscal Year 2022-2023. The total 
allocation of Sponsorships for the 2022-2023 fiscal year-to-date is as follows:  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Event Agency Event Date 
Allocated 
Amount

Yolo County Family Festival United Way CCR 7/16/2022 $250 
International Festival Davis International House- Davis 10/2/2022 $250 
Harvest Festival Woodland Parent Nursery 

School
10/29/2022 $250 

R2R/Welcome Baby All Staff Meeting CommuniCare Health 
Centers

1/11/2023 $250

Home Run Financial Wellness and 
Resource Fair

West Sacramento Home 
Run, City of West 
Sacramento

3/11/2023 $250 

Yolo Juneteenth Celebration Friends of the Davis Public 
Library

4/4/23 $250 

Total $1,500 

Additional Information and Attachments 

Sponsorships in bold/highlighted are new as of the last Commission meeting.
Promotional flyers are submitted with the applications when available at time of application.

Action Requested 

Receive list of allocated sponsorships and ask questions or provide comments. 

 



Agenda Item #09 
05/13/2023 

 
First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 

Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
 
                                             Attachments   

Agenda Item- Accept Report on Quarter 3 Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Funded Partner 
Progress 

Background
 
First 5 Yolo funded partner agencies submit demographic data and expenditure reports to 
First 5 Yolo Staff quarterly and performance measure reports twice-yearly. An Annual 
Local Evaluation Report is compiled at the end of the year using the data generated. The 
Commission receives and reviews this Report near the end of the calendar year or the 
beginning of the following. 
 
Executive Director Overview
 
The Quarter 3 (Q3) expenditure reports and demographic data have been submitted, and all 
programs are making appropriate progress. First 5 Yolo is processing quarterly fund 
distributions to partner agencies.  Performance measures are due Quarter 4 (Q4). 
 
Additional Information and attachments
 
The Q4 reports, due July 15, 2023, will close out FY 2022/23. First 5 Yolo continues to 
move towards greater alignment of efforts around early identification and prevention and 
early intervention services, as well as greater collaboration and integration through the 
CHILD Project: Road to Resilience, IMPACT, and Help Me Grow Initiatives. 
 
Action Requested
 
Accept Report on Quarter 3 Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Funded Partner Progress. 
 

 



Agenda Item #10 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                        Attachments  

Agenda Item- Approve $43,750 Increase to Northern California Children’s Therapy Center’s
and $11,000 Increase to CommuniCare Health Center’s Help Me Grow Contracts, Effective 
April 1, 2023 and Funded by Mental Health Services Act 

Background
 
The Commission approves recommended contract amounts in June for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1.  As programming develops and iterates and/or funding changes, contract 
amounts may require adjustment.  These adjustments come before the Commission for 
approval. 
 
Executive Director Overview

 
Northern California Children’s Therapy Center (CTC) is the lead direct service provider for 
First 5 Yolo’s Help Me Grow (HMG) initiative, and CommuniCare Health Centers (CCHC) 
provides in-home mental health therapy for parents/caregivers identified through HMG 
under the same systems effort. 
 
County of Yolo Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) funds HMG with First 5 Yolo.  
Recently, MHSA had some additional funding available for program needs through the 
current Fiscal Year.  First 5 Yolo is receiving those funds to enhance CTC and CCHC 
services under HMG, and thus the two direct service contracts require amendments to 
increase the funding. 
 
Additional Information and Attachments 

 

Action Requested 
 
Approve $43,750 Increase to Northern California Children’s Therapy Center’s and $11,000 
Increase to CommuniCare Health Center’s Help Me Grow Contracts, Effective April 1, 
2023 and Funded by Mental Health Services Act. 
 



Agenda Item #11 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                        Attachments  

 
Agenda Item- Receive Presentation on Yolo County Library Children’s Services
 

Background
 
First 5 Yolo has partnered with The Yolo County Library in the service of young children 
and their families over many years and in a variety of ways from programming to advocacy 
to family events. The Yolo County Library provides access for all to ideas that inform, 
entertain, and inspire by offering diverse and dynamic programs and services that provide 
opportunities for everyone to read, grow, discover and interact with one another and the 
world at large.  
 
Executive Director Overview

 
The Yolo County Children’s Librarian will join the Commission Meeting to present briefly 
on ongoing and new efforts to support Yolo County’s youngest residents 0-5 across the 
County. 
 
First 5 Yolo and the Yolo County Library share a commitment to supporting children’s 
earliest learning and wellbeing and work collaboratively to support children birth to five and 
their families. 
 
Additional Information and Attachments 
 
 

Action Requested 
 
Receive Presentation on Yolo County Library Children’s Services. 
 



Agenda Item #12 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                             Attachments  

Agenda Item- Public Hearing: Accept the First 5 California Annual Report for Fiscal 
Year 2021/2022  

Background

Annually, First 5 CA releases an Annual Report to the Legislature.  The Children & 
Families Act requires each county commission hold a public hearing to review the First 5 
CA Annual Report.  Comments are to be forwarded to First 5 CA.   
 
Executive Director Overview

By holding a public hearing on the First 5 CA Annual Report FY21-22, First 5 Yolo 
remains in compliance with the Children and Families Act and thereby can expect to 
continue to receive monthly disbursements.  Any comments provided by the public will be 
transcribed and sent to First 5 CA. 
 
Consistent with last year, the FY21-22 Report was streamlined to reflect a more reader- 
friendly PDF document. The report can be found online at the First 5 CA website:  
 
https://www.ccfc.ca.gov/pdf/about/budget_perf/annual_report_pdfs/Annual-Report-21-
22.pdf 
 
Additional Information and attachments
 
The First 5 Network continues to refine the Annual Report to better align the reporting of 
statewide efforts across all 58 county First 5 commissions.  
 
Action Requested
 
Hold public hearing and accept the First 5 California Annual Report for Fiscal Year 
2021/2022. 
 

 
 



Agenda Item #13 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                             Attachments  

Agenda Item- Accept Report on Part 2 of Fiscal Half-Year 1 2022/2023 Performance 
Measures 
 
Background
 
First 5 Yolo funded partners are required to submit demographic data quarterly, and 
performance measure data twice yearly, in January (Q2) and July (Q4).  
 
First 5 Yolo Staff verifies that funded partners are making satisfactory progress at Q2, and 
then payments are released.  The Commission receives a brief summary report after Q2 
reporting and staff review is complete.  Annually, per First 5 protocols, a more formal First 
5 Yolo Local Evaluation Report is reviewed and adopted by the Commission and shared 
with the community. 
 
Funded Partner Roundtable meetings are generally held twice yearly, after reporting is due 
to First 5 Yolo. The meetings are attended by all executive directors of funded agencies and 
as appropriate, lead program staff. Funded Partner Roundtables have been suspended during 
COVID-19 Emergency as agencies, including First 5 Yolo, responded to the crisis and met 
more regularly 1:1 or in smaller groups. Roundtables will be resumed at the close of Q4. 
 
Regularly, First 5 Yolo provides “touch-up training” on reporting for partners. First 5 Yolo 
also provides regular collaboration with funded partners on continuous quality 
improvement, including a focus on using data for program performance and iteration. 
Funded partners analyze data and report using Friedman Results Based Accountability 
(RBA) with three data or performance metric categories: PM 1- “how much”, PM 2-“how 
well,” and PM 3-“to what extent is the target population ‘better’ off” (program outcomes). 

Management Services Officer Overview 
 
In March, the Commission received a presentation on Fiscal Half Year 1 (Q2 mid-year) 
performance measures for First 5 Yolo’s largest initiative, The CHILD Project: Road to 
Resilience, and First 5 Yolo QCC/IMPACT Early Learning programs as the first of a two-
part presentation on program metrics. Staff will present the Q2 mid-year summary 
performance measure reports for the PM3 Standard (“better off” measurements) for the 
other First 5 Yolo health and safety programs as Part 2 of the performance measure review. 
Please note that some performance measures are only reported annually, at Q4, as 
appropriate to the program and evaluation tools. All performance measures were developed 
in collaboration with each funded partner, per process directed by Friedman Results Based 
Accountability.  The refinement of performance measures is a continual process.

The presentation for this Item will highlight a sampling of key metrics for Help Me Grow 
which includes In Home Therapy for Caregivers. A written summary is also provided as 
Attachment B to this Item, covering services in Attachment and Biobehavioral Catch-up 



Agenda Item #13 
05/10/23 

(ABC) Home Visiting and Crisis Nursery Intervention Services. Of note, F5Y partners with 
Child Welfare Services to provide ABC, specialized intervention services for families who 
need a safe place for their children and compassionate support through challenging 
circumstances. 

Help Me Grow is an early childhood mental health prevention and early intervention 
systems effort funded through a partnership between First 5 Yolo and County of Yolo 
Mental Health Services Act (MHSA). HMG provides a central access point for children 
birth to five and is designed to support with successful linkage, including developmental 
and other behavioral health screening for children and families, follow up for families, and 
support to providers as well. HMG child development specialists, who have an extensive, 
up-to-date resource binder on Yolo County supports/resources, and are skilled at navigating 
complex service eligibility criteria, are available to support both families and 

 Parents/caregivers are key to breaking the cycle of Adverse Childhood 
Experiences, and HMG provides the timely connection to the services needed to support the 
parenting/caregiving journey and set a strong foundation for early childhood mental health. 
HMG reduces provider and family stress and prevents unnecessary delays by organizing 
resources under one central access point.  
 
HMG partners with families and community providers to promptly connect children to 
appropriate levels of child development and mental health services matched to their unique 
needs and provides services to those who can’t access support in a timely manner. HMG 
resource and referral helpline activities are in service of a family’s stated goals and 

basic needs support. 
 
While significant improvements in developmental screening rates in the state have been 
made over the past decade for the general population, disparities remain among at-risk 
communities. Based on California Department of Healthcare Services (DHCS) report in 
2020, Yolo County has a screening rate of only 23.7-39.43% of children on Medi-Cal. 
Nationally, CA ranks 42nd for developmental screening for Medicaid beneficiaries.  

CA Department of Healthcare Services also estimated, late in 2022, that over 60% of CA 
children are at risk of behavioral delays. There is an enormous unmet need for prevention 
and early intervention services and HMG Yolo is experiencing increased waitlists, provider 
shortage in services such as speech, psychological evaluations, and caregiver mental health. 

 

 

(continued on next page) 

 

 

 



Agenda Item #13 
05/10/23 

Additional Information and attachments
 
Data analysis is not only for First 5 Yolo reporting, but for agencies to use for internal 
purposes and continuous program improvement.  All funded partners have had training on 
First 5 Yolo’s Clear Impact reporting system and Results Based Accountability (RBA), and
First 5 Yolo Staff offer regular technical assistance. First 5 Yolo Staff are trained in 
Friedman RBA and the use of data for continuous quality improvement. 
 
Attachment A: HMG infographic highlighting a sampling of key metrics that will be 
shared at the meeting.  
Attachment B: Summary of performance measures from Crisis Nursery Intervention 
Services and ABC Home Visiting. 
 
Action Requested
 
Accept Report on Part 2 of Fiscal Half-Year 1 2022/2023 Performance Measures.
 

 
 



Item 13: Attachment A



Item 13: Attachment A



Item 13: Attachment B

First Half Fiscal Year Partner Performance Measure Reporting Child Health and 
Safety Programs

First 5 Yolo’s Child Health and Safety Programs in Fiscal Year 2022-2023 include The CHILD Project: Road to 
Resilience and Welcome Baby, Help Me Grow (HMG), HMG-In Home Therapy for Caregivers, Yolo Crisis 
Nursery Intervention Services, Attachment and Biobehavioral Catch-up Home Visiting. These programs are 
focused on children 0-5 and their families across the County with an emphasis on highest risk families and
children ages prenatal-2. Services included a variety of levels of intensity, service duration, and focus areas 
(e.g., home visiting, child development, mental health, etc.). In FHY 1 2022, the programs worked together to 
support a more coordinated system of care for our youngest children and families across the County.

Yolo Crisis Nursery Intervention Services

Program Description: Support of Yolo Crisis Nursery services to increase child safety and well-being in times of
crisis, improve access to services for victims of family violence, and increase respite support for foster parents 
by providing trauma-informed, professional crisis and respite care for children 0-5 as well as case management
offered through a Mobile Client Navigator focused on serving adults and minors who are the victims of family 
violence and human trafficking with young children. 

First Fiscal Half Year Performance Measure Outcomes:
78 families received case management.
782 licensed drop-in childcare slots used, or 18,768 hours of safe care provided (a 166% increase compared to 
the same timeframe (FHY1) in FY 2021-22 (293 vs 782 slots)
100% (n=55) of parents/caregivers reported they were able to access needed services because of the onsite 
location of the Mobile Client Navigator. 

100% of parents/caregivers report a decrease in level of stress at time of exit of overnight care.
100% of children are up to date on vaccinations at program exit.
100% of children/families completed at least one of their goals set a time of intake for case management. 

Notes: Case management is delivered by the Yolo Crisis Nursery Mobile Client Navigator focuses on increasing
outreach to harder to reach populations by meeting families where they are and taking direct services to parents 
experiencing domestic violence and other crises that put their young child at risk of abuse or neglect.  The Mobile 
Client Navigator opens access to developmental screening and crisis services to hard-to-reach and vulnerable 
populations.

Attachment and Biobehavioral Catch-up (Yolo Crisis Nursery)

Program Description: Shared programming with Yolo County Child Welfare Services to promote 
permanency by providing in-home services and training to child welfare-involved families, those families that
are actively in family reunification services and transitioning to family maintenance services. 

Parental sensitivity is key to the development of brain architecture, self-regulatory capabilities, and secure 
attachments for infants and young children. Many parents struggle providing sensitive, responsive care. YCN 
helps families with children between 6 and 48 months of age to help parents strengthen their relationships 



Item 13: Attachment B

with their children by helping them identify and respond to their children’s signals, while also helping the
children learn to regulate behaviors and emotions. The program includes ten 1-hour in-home videotaped 
sessions where parents are provided positive feedback using video clip review and comments.

This is a co-funded program with County Child Welfare Services. As of last fiscal year, at-risk families are also
allowed to enroll on a case-by-case basis and with approval by CWS. This allows YCN or other partners to 
identify and refer families at risk to ABC and request approval from CWS. Staff are working with the new
Home Visiting Collaborative and have begun to leverage existing networks through Help Me Grow to continue 
to increase referrals and engagement for ABC.

ABC reports PM 3 Measures annually at year end. 

In the first two quarters of Fiscal Year 2022/2023, 7 parents and 7 children were served.  This is an increase in 
the number of families served relative to prior years in the same time frame. The new eligibility criteria allowing 
at risk families to enroll as well as ongoing efforts to promote awareness, attend HV collaborative meetings, and 
continued work with CWS to streamline referral processes has helped with recruitment and engagement.  



Agenda Item #14 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                        Attachments    

 
Agenda Item- First 5 Yolo Childcare Recovery Package American Rescue Plan Act Project: 
Authorize Subaward Agreement to the City of Winters, up to $122,000 and to Winters Joint 
Unified School District, up to $40,500 

Background

Passed by US Congress and signed into law on March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan 
(ARP) provides COVID-19 financial support to state and local governments, businesses, 
citizens, and Public Health with a wide array of assistance.  County of Yolo received close 
to $43 million through these federal funds. ARP is a flexible funding stream (with some 
defined ineligible uses) that is intended to address COVID-19 impacts and recovery at the 
local level. 
 
On April 12, 2022, the County Board of Supervisors approved First 5 Yolo’s Childcare 
Recovery Package as an ARP-funded effort at $1.3 million over 12 months.  The Childcare 
Recovery Package is aimed at supporting childcare providers across Yolo County in 
recognition of their frontline work during COVID-19 response and recovery and at 
improving infrastructure and capacity in the local childcare system.  This, in turn, is 
supportive of parents returning to and remaining in the workforce during economic recovery 
from the COVID-19 Pandemic.
 
There are two main components of this one-time Childcare Recovery Package—
Infrastructure Grants and Recovery Grants—both anticipated to be fully distributed within 
12 months. Infrastructure Grants were available to any non-public licensed provider to 
increase capacity (e.g., move from closed/inactive to open, expand current licensure, expand 
numbers of children served, expand/enhance facilities, staffing, or furnishings required to 
care for more children, obtain a new license to open a new care location), and to incentivize 
opening or expanding care for infants and toddlers 0-2.  These grants were also available to 
pay for licensing fees and to incentivize Family, Friend, Neighbor (FFN) license-exempt 
providers seeking to become licensed. Recovery Grants were planned as smaller, flexible 
grants to help sustain and support licensed providers countywide during this particularly 
precarious time of operation with rising costs, difficulties in staff recruitment and retention, 
virus-related revenue disruptions, and mental health challenges for both staff and families.  
 
First 5 Yolo Childcare Recovery Package also included funds for up to two larger 
Infrastructure Grants to address needs in childcare deserts and for funding of linguistically 
matched supports for FFN’s moving through the licensing process (concentrated in refugee 
neighborhoods in West Sacramento and childcare deserts Knights Landing and Clarksburg). 
 
 
 



Agenda Item #14 
05/10/23 

Executive Director Overview
 

First 5 Yolo has identified recipients for both of its larger infrastructure grants to address 
needs in childcare deserts. These grants are taking longer to implement, and thus the grant 
timeline has been extended to allow for this final piece to conclude.  In consultation with 
County of Yolo leadership, two larger infrastructure grants will concentrate on building the 
Winters childcare system, particularly as the only childcare center serving younger children 
faced closure earlier this year. 
 
The City of Winters has offered to partner with First 5 Yolo to support the Winters Parent 
Nursery School (WPNS) to make necessary improvements to their facility to maintain the 
safety of children currently in care and remain in compliance with licensing requirements.  
WPNS is currently located in a City-owned facility made possible through a Joint Use 
Agreement between the City and WPNS. The City of Winters will coordinate and oversee 
all work done at the site to total up to $122,000. 
 
First 5 Yolo also anticipates a partnership with Winters Joint Unified School District on a 
modest Infrastructure Grant, up to $40,500, to help support a new early learning center as 
part of School District property.  Details are still unfolding, and an update will be provided 
at the meeting. 
 
Additional Information and Attachments 
 
The Sole Source Justification Forms for this Agreement are included as Attachments A 
and B to this item. 
 
Action Requested 
 
First 5 Yolo Childcare Recovery Package American Rescue Plan Act Project: Authorize Subaward 
Agreement to the City of Winters, up to $122,000 and to Winters Joint Unified School District, up to 
$40,500. 



SOLE SOURCE PROCURMENT AND CONTRACTING JUSTIFICATION FORM

Name of Potential Provider/Contractor:  City of Winters 
Name of Project:  Infrastructure work under Childcare Recovery ARP Project 
Project Dates: March 1, 2023- December 31, 2023

Description of Service to be provided: City of Winters, as property owner of the 
building/land for Winters Parent Nursery School, 
will add hot water to bathrooms, paint exterior 
and/or interior, and replace the fence around the 
yard.

Amount: Up to $122,000

Justification: 
Sole source procurement will only be used when competitive procurement procedures are 
deemed infeasible for at least one of the following reasons: (check the boxes that apply) 

There is only one viable provider of the required service in the community.

After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined to be inadequate.

A local provider is the only provider with the required expertise, skills and capacity to
provide the service.

All local providers of a particular service will receive funding.

The Commission is contemplating an effort that has not previously been done in the
community and is therefore unable to either develop an RFP with sufficient specificity or to
identify potential providers.

The contract is with a state, federal or local government.

The contract is for a continuation or augmentation of a project or service previously
performed by the contractor.

Other: The proposal specifically addresses situations where State, federal or other grant
funding reductions/cuts impact the ability of agencies to meet existing and/or increased
demand in service needs of eligible families but would not violate the supplantation
prohibition.

Item 14: Attachment A



Whenever sole source procurement is used, the rationale will be fully justified in writing and 
approved by the Commission or its designated agent (e.g., Executive Director) before a contract 
is signed. The documentation justifying a sole source procurement include the following: 

The effort made to solicit competitive bids or proposals, if any. 

A summary outlining the reason for the sole source, based on the allowable 
exceptions set forth above. 
City of Winters is a local government agency and property owner of the Winters 
Parent Nursery School.  

Special factors affecting the cost under the contract. 

Other Comments:  

Approval and Signature:

5/5/23

Executive Director       Date

Item 14: Attachment A



SOLE SOURCE PROCURMENT AND CONTRACTING JUSTIFICATION FORM

Name of Potential Provider/Contractor:  Winters Joint Unified School District 
Name of Project:  Infrastructure Grant under Childcare Recovery ARP Project 
Project Dates: June 1, 2023- December 31, 2023

Description of Service to be provided: Partnership funding to support WJUSD’s 
development of an early learning center.

Amount: Up to $122,000

Justification: 
Sole source procurement will only be used when competitive procurement procedures are 
deemed infeasible for at least one of the following reasons: (check the boxes that apply) 

There is only one viable provider of the required service in the community.

After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined to be inadequate.

A local provider is the only provider with the required expertise, skills and capacity to
provide the service.

All local providers of a particular service will receive funding.

The Commission is contemplating an effort that has not previously been done in the
community and is therefore unable to either develop an RFP with sufficient specificity or to
identify potential providers.

The contract is with a state, federal or local government.

The contract is for a continuation or augmentation of a project or service previously
performed by the contractor.

Other: The proposal specifically addresses situations where State, federal or other grant
funding reductions/cuts impact the ability of agencies to meet existing and/or increased
demand in service needs of eligible families but would not violate the supplantation
prohibition.

Whenever sole source procurement is used, the rationale will be fully justified in writing and 
approved by the Commission or its designated agent (e.g., Executive Director) before a contract 
is signed. The documentation justifying a sole source procurement include the following:  

Item 14: Attachment B



The effort made to solicit competitive bids or proposals, if any. 

A summary outlining the reason for the sole source, based on the allowable 
exceptions set forth above. 
Winters Joint Unified School District is a local government agency.

Special factors affecting the cost under the contract. 

Other Comments:  

Approval and Signature:

5/5/23

Executive Director Date

Item 14: Attachment B



Agenda Item #15 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                        Attachments  

Agenda Item- Authorize Contract to Yolo County Children’s Alliance for Child Welfare 
Services Alternative Response Grant up to $161,818 through June 30, 2024, effective May 1, 
2023 

Background
 
In January 2023, Yolo County’s Health and Human Services Child Youth and Family 
Division released a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Alternative Response Services (AR)
aimed at providing culturally relevant Healthy Families America and Family Check-Up 
home visiting services to families identified by Child Welfare. Understanding the disparities 
that exist within Yolo County’s Child Welfare system, the RFP also included a focus on 
serving Black/African American Families, who are overrepresented in the system, and other 
high-risk populations. The County of Yolo is also in process of developing its 
Comprehensive Prevention Plan under the Families First Preventions Service Act (FFPSA) 
and views the Alternative Response Program and a pilot opportunity to develop the 
processes by which federal Title IV-E funds can be drawn down at the local level to provide 
services to those at imminent risk of entering the Child Welfare System.
 
First 5 Yolo responded to the RFP and proposed an expansion to the Healthy Families 
America (HFA) home visiting component of The CHILD Project: Road to Resilience, a 
successful effort with existing infrastructure created with Child Welfare Services (CWS) as 
a partner in 2019.  The addition of AR would strengthen the existing referral pathway from 
Child Welfare to culturally responsive, linguistically matched, home visiting services. 
Additionally, First 5 Yolo proposed adding targeted Evidence-Based training from the 
Effective Black Parenting Program to address the unique needs of Black/African American 
Families and to coordinate with its direct service provider, Yolo County Children’s Alliance 
to implement the Child Welfare Protocol allowable under the HFA National model. 

Executive Director Overview
 

In April 2023, First 5 Yolo received the County of Yolo’s Notice of Intent to Award its 
proposal as submitted. The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between First 5 Yolo 
and County of Yolo is for 14-months (through June 30, 2024) with an option to extend for 
an additional 12-months. First 5 Yolo and Child Welfare staff are working collaboratively 
on the MOU, which will be effective to May 1, 2023.  First 5 Yolo is coordinating closely 
with YCCA to plan and launch this expansion to R2R. 

This funding stream, braided into R2R, is also carefully coordinated with First 5 Yolo’s new 
CalWORKs Home Visiting funding (expected July 1, 2023) and Welcome Baby funding to 
build a stronger and more accessible system of home visiting services for families across 
Yolo County. 
  



Agenda Item #15 
05/10/23 

Additional Information and Attachments
 
The Sole Source Justification Form for this Agreement is included as Attachment A to this 
item. 
 
 
Action Requested
 
Authorize Contract to Yolo County Children’s Alliance for Child Welfare Services 
Alternative Response Grant up to $161,818 through June 30, 2024, effective May 1, 2023. 



SOLE SOURCE PROCURMENT AND CONTRACTING JUSTIFICATION FORM

Name of Potential Provider/Contractor:  Yolo County Children’s Alliance 
Name of Project:  Alternative Response
Project Dates: May 1, 2023- June 30, 2024

Description of Service to be provided:  
Healthy Families America home visiting services as part of First 5 Yolo’s CHILD Project: Road 
to Resilience (R2R) systems initiative.

Amount: $161,818 

Justification: 
Sole source procurement will only be used when competitive procurement procedures are 
deemed infeasible for at least one of the following reasons: (check the boxes that apply) 

There is only one viable provider of the required service in the community.

After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined to be inadequate.

A local provider is the only provider with the required expertise, skills and capacity to
provide the service.

All local providers of a particular service will receive funding.

The Commission is contemplating an effort that has not previously been done in the
community and is therefore unable to either develop an RFP with sufficient specificity or to
identify potential providers.

The contract is with a state, federal or local government.

The contract is for a continuation or augmentation of a project or service previously
performed by the contractor.

Other: The proposal specifically addresses situations where State, federal or other grant
funding reductions/cuts impact the ability of agencies to meet existing and/or increased
demand in service needs of eligible families, but would not violate the supplantation
prohibition.

Whenever sole source procurement is used, the rationale will be fully justified in writing and 
approved by the Commission or its designated agent (e.g., Executive Director) before a contract 
is signed. The documentation justifying a sole source procurement include the following:  

Item 15: Attachment A



The effort made to solicit competitive bids or proposals, if any. 

A summary outlining the reason for the sole source, based on the allowable 
exceptions set forth above. 
YCCA is currently providing HFA under The CHILD Project: Road to Resilience and is 
integrated into the systems effort and trained and coordinated with other partners.  
YCCA is also the only HFA provider in Yolo County.

Special factors affecting the cost under the contract. 

Other Comments:  

Approval and Signature:

5/5/2023

Executive Director       Date

Item 15: Attachment A



Agenda Item #16 
05/10/2023 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet

 
                                             Attachments   

Agenda Item- Accept Quarter 3 Fiscal Year 22-23 Revenue and Expenditure Year-to-
Date Summary Report

Background

Quarterly, First 5 Yolo staff provides to the Commission a Revenue and Expenditure Report 
tracking actual and projected revenues and expenditures against the current approved budget 
and recommends changes to the budget based on the projections and new information, as 
necessary.
 
Deputy Director Overview 
 
The Q3 FY23 Revenue and Expenditure YTD Summary Report includes all funds received 
and expended from July 1, 2022- March 31, 2023, as well as revenues earned and expenses 
incurred in the defined period, though funds may have been received and expended after 
March 31 (funds expected to be received and paid within the period of availability).  
 
Of note are the following items: 

1. Staff recommend modifications to the FY22-23 Budget to account for new revenue 
and program expenditures related to receipt of funding to expand The CHILD 
Project: Road to Resilience with Alternative Response funding, and an amendment 
received from Yolo County MHSA to expand and maintain Help Me Grow services. 
 

2. In March 2023, First 5 California released revised Prop 10 projections covering 
Fiscal Year 2022/2023 through 2026/2027. These projections continue to rely on 
2019 birth data, as First 5 California has not received updated birth data and 
projections from the CA Department of Health Care Services, though information on 
2020 and 2021 birth rates are publicly available.  While the Commission anticipates 
receiving a “true-up” of 2022-2023 Prop 10 allocations, the amount is now expected 
to result in a minimal increase in revenue for Yolo as greater variation between 
projected birth trends and actual birth trends were realized relative to previously 
available projections. 

 
3. As the Commission enters the final quarter of Fiscal Year 2022-2023, staff are better 

able to project revenues and program, personnel, operational, and professional 
service expenditures resulting in more detail provided in this report on anticipated 
year-end budget variances. Within the revenue and program expenditure budget 
objects, the majority of variances which result in reduced revenues or program 
expenditures will be rolled into future periods and are expected to be fully expended 
by each agreement’s respective close.

 
4. The Commission’s currently projected Ending Fund Balance at June 30, 2023 is 

$2,218,479, inclusive of all established reserves and restricted funds.  In June, the 



Agenda Item #16 
05/10/2023 

Commission will consider adoption of a new Long Term Financial Plan where 
reserve types and amounts will be considered. 

 
Additional notes and detail are available within the Q3 FY23 Revenue and Expenditures 
YTD Summary Report. 

Additional Information and attachments

The Q3 FY23 Revenues and Expenditure YTD Summary Report is included with this item 
as Attachment A. 
 
Action Requested
 
Accept Quarter 3 Fiscal Year 22-23 Revenue and Expenditure Year-to-Date Summary 
Report. 
 

 
 



Item 16: Attachment A



Item 16: Attachment A



Item 16: Attachment A



Item 16: Attachment A



Agenda Item #17 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                             Attachments  

 
Agenda Item- Receive Strategic Planning Update and Review Draft Components 

Background

Each year, to remain in compliance with the Children and Families Act of 1989, First 5 Yolo 
must adopt, review and/or update its Strategic Plan to ensure that funding is appropriately 
allocated and reflected accurately in the document for the current fiscal year. Annual updates 
to the Strategic Plan include a refreshed Funding Plan, and typically also include updates to 
the Commissioner and Staff List (as appropriate), as well as financial updates. Some 
components of First 5 strategic plans are required by Statute.
 
In forming the FY18/19-22/23 Strategic Plan, the Commission focused on prioritization, 
systems, and leveraging for more complex, multi-year initiatives.  The implementation of the 
Funding Plan has adhered to these key points.  First 5 Yolo investments and efforts are 
targeted and coordinated to maximize impact, and investments are strategically leveraged.
 
In FY 22/23, First 5 Yolo Commission launched a fuller strategic planning process to 
develop a more streamlined and publicly accessible Strategic Plan for the next five years.
 
The First 5 Yolo Strategic Plan must be reviewed by Commissioners and approved at a 
public hearing before the start of each new fiscal year. The current FY18/19-22/23 Strategic 
Plan concludes June 30, 2023. The Commission will adopt the new Strategic Plan at its 
meeting in June 2023. 

Executive Director Overview 

The purpose of this Item is to preview, for Commissioners, draft components of the new Strategic 
Plan before presented for adoption in June such that comments and requests of the Commission 
may be incorporated into the final product.  
 
First 5 Yolo has worked with consultant Rafael Gomez of El Cambio Consulting on its new 
Strategic Plan.  Rafael developed the most recent First 5 Association Strategic Plan and has 
worked to ensure alignment of First 5 Yolo’s efforts, while tailoring the process to Yolo County 
needs.  As determined early in the process, First 5 Yolo expects a two-page infographic 
summarizing key points as well as the fuller Plan with requisite First 5 pieces (e.g., Funding 
Plan). The planning process has included intensive sessions with First 5 Yolo Staff, retreat work 
with Commissioners, and listening sessions with stakeholders and partners from health, safety, 
and early learning fields, as well as 1:1 or small group discussions with local leaders.   
 
Listening sessions were led by Rafael and El Cambio, and intentionally did not include First 5 
Yolo representatives to allow for more candid conversations.  The First 5 Yolo Executive 
Director will present the summary findings submitted by El Cambio for the listening sessions and 
will preview the goals and priority areas identified through the planning process this year.  While 



draft graphics will be presented to demonstrate key concepts, please note that final graphics are 
still being developed by El Cambio. 

As per First 5 format, First 5 Yolo’s Strategic Plan will also include the following items, 
drafts of which are included as an attachment to this item and Agenda Item #19: 
 

 Commissioner and Staff List 
 Letter from the Chair 
 Sustainability section 
 Funding Plan through Fiscal Year 2023-2024 to reflect planned program allocations 

The proposed Funding Plan will be reviewed in detail in the upcoming Agenda Item, #19. 

Additional Information and attachments

The Commissioner and Staff List, Letter from the Chair, and Sustainability Section are included 
as Attachment A to this item. The Draft Funding Plan will be reviewed as part of Agenda Item 
#19. 

Rafael Gomez of El Cambio Consulting will be present at the June Commission Meeting to 
present the final Strategic Plan. 

Action Requested 

Receive Strategic Planning Update and Review Draft Components.
 

 



First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commissioners & Staff

First 5 Yolo Commissioners are appointed by members of the Yolo County Board of 
Supervisors. Members of First 5 Yolo include five community representatives, one from each of 
the five districts of Yolo County, two representatives from county agencies, one member-at-
large, and one member of the Yolo County Board of Supervisors.

Current First 5 Yolo Commissioners:

Jim Provenza, Yolo County Supervisor, 
Chair, Board of Supervisors

Anna Domek, District 1
Community Representative

Sally Brown, District 2
Community Representative 

Jenn Rexroad, District 3
Community Representative

Heidy Kellison, District 4
Community Representative

Melissa Roberts, District 5
Community Representative

Garth Lewis, Yolo County
Superintendent 

Karleen Jakowski, Assistant Director

Nichole Arnold, 
Children with Special Needs Re ve 

Current First 5 Yolo Staff:

Gina Daleiden
Executive Director

Victoria Zimmerle, MBA
Deputy Director

Melina Ortigas, CCRP
Management Services 

Sarah Lin Hartman, PhD        

Alanna Jonsson, JD
Program Supervisor

Fawn Montagna, MA
QCC 

Rachel McFarland

Lori Duisenberg
Associate Management Analyst

Item 17: Attachment A

Superintendent Superintendent 

Karleen Jakowski, Assistant DirectorKarleen Jakowski, Assistant DirectorKarleen Jakowski, Assistant Director

ole Aole Arnold, rnold, 
Children wiChildren with th Special NSpecial Needs Re

oria Zimmerle, MBA

a Ortigas, CCRPa Ortigas, CCRP
Management Services Management Services 

h Lin Hartman, PhD        h Lin Hartman, PhD        

Fawn Montagna, MA
QCC QCC 



Yolo Community Members and Stakeholders:

First 5 Yolo is pleased to present its Fiscal Year 23/24-27/28 Strategic Plan. This Plan reflects the 
Commission's commitment to Yolo County children aged 0-5 and their families.

Proposition 10, the California Children and Families Act, represents the will of the people to empower 
local First 5 commissions to dedicate funding where it is needed most in their communities.

The Fiscal Year 23/24-27/28 Strategic Plan is built with input from our community, parents, providers, and 
stakeholders, and it is intended to address the unique child health, safety, early learning, and systems 
change needs of Yolo County. The Plan is informed by The First 5 Network, evidence-based and best 
practices and approaches in early childhood, and local experiences. 

The Strategic Plan is the road map to ensure that First 5 Yolo funds high-impact investments that benefit 
children ages 0-5 and their families.  We are proud of our new direction, specifically:

We continue to make strategic and aligned investments, particularly for families at greatest risk.
We recognize the advantage of improving the systems of care to create more lasting and
meaningful impacts.
We continue to institute more prevention-focused efforts that support stable and strong families,
while saving dollars on more costly interventions later in life.
We increasingly leverage partners’ investments to strengthen the collective impact and enhance
sustainability.

The critical nature of early childhood is an imperative to take action and to invest wisely. This approach 
offers the best opportunity to maximize our limited resources while improving the lives of young children 
and their families.

The impact of the COVID-19 crisis on families and caregivers has been extensive with significant effects 
on economic security, physical and mental health, and social functioning. As a result, families have had to 
face a host of new challenges including added financial strain, loss of childcare and employment, and 
decreased access to social services, with high-risk families being disproportionately affected.

This damaging effect on families is of great concern given the well-established connection between early 
adversity and long-term consequences on children, such as more mental and physical health problems, 
decreased school readiness, and suboptimal brain development. Additionally, because the Pandemic has 
disproportionately affected vulnerable populations, we can expect that, without intervention, these 
negative impacts will only deepen sociodemographic and racial disparities. Thus, First 5 Yolo sees its 
work in the upcoming years as vital in supporting families in recovering from the pandemic. First 5 Yolo 
reaffirms its commitment to champion families, especially those in greatest need, by creating and 
supporting initiatives that move our community towards a more an integrated, trauma-informed, and 
equitable early childhood system.

On behalf of First 5 Yolo, I thank everyone who is a partner in making meaningful and lasting change for 
our youngest children.  The Commission will continue devoting resources to essential services that 
benefit the whole child during the first five years of life.  Children are our first priority. These early years 
are the foundation for future success in school and in life and represent the greatest point of leverage to 
improve our entire community.

Sincerely,

Jim Provenza, Chair

Item 17: Attachment A

local First 5 commissions to dedicate funding where it is needed most in their communities.local First 5 commissions to dedicate funding where it is needed most in their communities.

Strategic Plan is built with input from our community, parents, providers, and Strategic Plan is built with input from our community, parents, providers, and 
stakeholders, and it is intended to address the unique child health, safety, early learning, and systems stakeholders, and it is intended to address the unique child health, safety, early learning, and systems 
change needs of Yolo County. The Plan is informed by The First 5 Network, evidencechange needs of Yolo County. The Plan is informed by The First 5 Network, evidence-based and best 
practices and approaches in early childhood, and local experiencespractices and approaches in early childhood, and local experiences. . 

ategic Plan is the road map to ensure that First 5 Yolo funds highategic Plan is the road map to ensure that First 5 Yolo funds high-impact investments that benefit mpact investments that benefit 
5 and their families.  We are proud of our new direction, specifically:5 and their families.  We are proud of our new direction, specifically:

We continue to make strategic and aligned investments, particularly for families at greatest risk.We continue to make strategic and aligned investments, particularly for families at greatest risk.
We recognize the advantage of improving the systems of care to create more lasting andWe recognize the advantage of improving the systems of care to create more lasting and

We continue to institute more preventionWe continue to institute more prevention--focused efforts that support stable and strong families,focused efforts that support stable and strong families,
while saving dollars on more costly interventions later in life.while saving dollars on more costly interventions later in life.

partners’ investments to strengthen the collective impact and enhancepartners’ investments to strengthen the collective impact and enhance

tical nature of early childhood is an imperative to take action and to invest wisely. This approach tical nature of early childhood is an imperative to take action and to invest wisely. This approach 
offers the best opportunity to maximize our limited resourcesoffers the best opportunity to maximize our limited resources while improving the lives of young children 

t of the COVID-19 crisis on families and caregivers has been extensive with significant effects 19 crisis on families and caregivers has been extensive with significant effects 
on economic security, physical and mental health, and social functioning.on economic security, physical and mental health, and social functioning.
face a host of new challenges including added financial strain, loss of childcare and employment, and face a host of new challenges including added financial strain, loss of childcare and employment, and 
decreased access to social services, with highdecreased access to social services, with high-risk families being disproportionately affected.

aging effect on families is of great concern given the wellaging effect on families is of great concern given the well
adversity and longadversity and long-term consequences on children, such as more mental and physical health problems, term consequences on children, such as more mental and physical health problems, 
decreased school readiness, and suboptimal brain development. Additionally, because decreased school readiness, and suboptimal brain development. Additionally, because 
disproportionately affected vulnerable populations, we can expect that, without intervention, these disproportionately affected vulnerable populations, we can expect that, without intervention, these 
negative impacts will only deepen sociodemographic and racial disparities. Thus, First 5 Yolo sees its negative impacts will only deepen sociodemographic and racial disparities. Thus, First 5 Yolo sees its 
work in the upcoming years as vital in supporting families in recovering from the pandemic. First 5 Yolo work in the upcoming years as vital in supporting families in recovering from the pandemic. First 5 Yolo 
reaffirms its commitment to champion families, especially those in greatest need, by creating and reaffirms its commitment to champion families, especially those in greatest need, by creating and 



Sustainability

The sustainability of systems and supports provided through First 5 Yolo (F5Y) 
investments to ensure that children are healthy, safe, and ready to learn is our priority. 
Currently, Proposition 10 funding is declining annually at approximately 1% to 5% as 
consumption of nicotine products continues to decline in California and new legislation 
is implemented. To date, First 5 Yolo has managed declining revenues through the
strategic allocation and use of reserve funds, leveraging state and local funding, and
improved internal efficiencies.

The financial chart included
illustrates the Prop 10 fiscal 
landscape since 2000 and
projections through the life of this 
Strategic Plan. In this strategic
plan, F5Y is starting with an 
anticipated annual Prop 10
allocation of $1.22 million, which
is expected to decline to $1.20
million by Fiscal Year 2026/27. In 
January 2023, the California ban
on the sale of Flavored Tobacco 

Products went into effect, and while First 5 Yolo is supportive of this positive public 
health measure, it has the unintended consequence of exacerbating the decline of an 
already declining revenue stream and threatening the 25-year infrastructure of First 5
statewide. Between Fiscal Year 2021/2022 and Fiscal Year 2023/2024, Prop 10 
revenues are expected to decline 15%.

When the Commission adopted the FY2018/19-22/23 Strategic Plan, First 5 Yolo
committed to sustainable community investments, leveraging funds from other State 
and local funding partners, and the strategic utilization of Fund Balance to maintain 
multi-year program funding investment across the life of the Strategic Plan. Given the
fiscal reality faced by First 5 Yolo, this Strategic Plan continues this commitment to
sustainable investment and re-affirms the commitment to maintain, as well as seek, 
new opportunities for leveraging funds through partnerships to create greater collective 
impact. This includes an increased focus on investments designed to effect “systems 
change” to improve and coordinate the system of care. Investments may be direct 
services that affect systems change, as well as support of work to optimize 
coordination, advocacy, and strategic investments. Through these actions, First 5 Yolo
can maximize community impact in the face of declining revenue.

F5Y will continue to work with other local leaders and partners to proactively pursue 
new opportunities to obtain and/or leverage resources that support the early childhood 
system in Yolo County.

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

Fiscal Year Ending

First 5 Yolo Prop 10 Funding- History and 
Projections

Item 17: Attachment A

financialfinancial chartchart included
illustratesillustrates thethe PropProp 10 fiscal 
landscapelandscape since ce 2000 and2000 and
projectionsprojections through the life of this through the life of this 
Strategic PlanStrategic Plan. In thisthis strategicstrategic
plan,plan, F5YF5Y is starting withwith an an 
anticipatedanticipated annual Prop
allocaallocattionion of $of 1.22 million,
isis expeexpected to decline
millionmillion byby Fiscal Year 
January 2023January 2023
on the sale of Flavored Tobacco on the sale of Flavored Tobacco 

and while First 5 Yolo is supportive of this positive public and while First 5 Yolo is supportive of this positive public 
health measure, it has the unintended consequence of health measure, it has the unintended consequence of exacerbating the decline of an 
already declining revenue streamalready declining revenue stream and threatening the 25and threatening the 25

. Between Fiscal Year 2021/2022 and Fiscal Year 2023/2024, Prop 10 . Between Fiscal Year 2021/2022 and Fiscal Year 2023/2024, Prop 10 
revenues are expected to decline 15%.revenues are expected to decline 15%.

Commission adoptedadopted the FY2018/19
committed tocommitted to sustainablesustainable communitycommunity investm
and local funding partners, and the strategic utilization of Fund Balance to maintain and local funding partners, and the strategic utilization of Fund Balance to maintain 

--year year program funding investment across the life of the Strategic Plan. program funding investment across the life of the Strategic Plan. 
realityreality faced by FirstFirst 5 Yolo,5 Yolo,

stainablestainable investment andinvestment and re
new opportunities for leveraging funds through partnerships to create greaternew opportunities for leveraging funds through partnerships to create greater
impact. This includes an impact. This includes an 

” to improve and coordinate the system of care. ” to improve and coordinate the system of care. 



D
RA

FT
 D

O
CU

M
EN

T

Fi
rs

t 5
 Y

ol
o 

Co
un

ty
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n:
 2

02
3 

– 
20

28
 

 
D

RA
FT

 F
O

R 
D

IS
CU

SS
IO

N
 (5

/8
/2

3)
 

he
 m

is
si

on
 o

f F
irs

t 5
 Y

ol
o 

Co
un

ty
 is

 “
to

 a
ss

ist
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
ity

 to
 

m
is

si
on

 fu
rt

he
r a

do
pt

ed
 

 
 

 
 

 
cr

os
s 

a 
ra

ng
e 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Co

m
m

it 
to

 
 

 

 Co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 F

irs
t 5

 Y
ol

o’
s 

M
is

si
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

-2
8 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 re

-c
om

m
its

 to
 th

e 
G

oa
ls

 
-5

 a
nd

 th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

as
 w

el
l a

s 
-a

rc
hi

ng
 p

rio
rit

y 
St

ra
te

gi
es

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
ac

ro
ss

 th
es

e 
 T

he
 

 
 w

ay
s 

in
 w

hi
ch

 F
irs

t 5
 c

an
 im

pa
ct

 c
hi

ld
 a

nd
 fa

m
ily

 w
el

l-
 w

he
th

er
 

 
Pl

an
 in

cl
ud

es
 p

rio
rit

y 
St

ra
te

gi
es

 d
es

cr
ib

in
g 

th
e 

 5
 Y

ol
o 

w
ill

 s
ee

k 
to

 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
its

 
-2

8 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 in
cl

ud
es

 
 

 
 

 

 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 

 
 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 A
ge

nc
y 

Ca
pa

bi
lit

y
 













Agenda Item #18 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                             Attachments  

Agenda Item- Review Working Assumptions for the First 5 Yolo Fiscal Year 2023/2024-
2027/2028 Long-Term Financial Plan 

Background 

First 5 Commissions must develop and adopt a Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP) that spans 
at least five (5) years to illustrate the likely financial outcomes of particular courses of action 
or factors affecting the environment in which it operates. Out-year projections are based on 
current, best available information.  
 
The LTFP is a planning document showing the Commission’s intent and/or ability to invest 
over time under a likely scenario. It neither binds nor commits the Commission and is not the 
same as a detailed annual budget. 
 
The current LTFP covers Fiscal Year 2018/19- 2022/23 however, at the March 2023 
Commission meeting, Commissioners voted to conclude the current LTFP one year early and 
adopt a new LTFP aligned to the time horizon anticipated in the new Strategic Plan which 
covers Fiscal Years 2023/24-2027/28.  

Deputy Director Overview 

The purpose of the Long-Term Financial Plan is to provide a framework for current and 
future decision making by illustrating the likely financial outcomes of a particular course of 
action or factors affecting the environment in which the Commission operates, addressing the 
long-term financial implications of current and proposed policies, programs, and assumptions 
and taking into consideration recent and historical trends, as well as future goals and 
objectives.  

Staff have drafted the key assumptions for Commission review, which will serve as the basis 
for the development of the Long-Term Financial Plan to be adopted by the Commission in
June taking into consideration both the current and projected future financial, operational, 
and program landscape in which the Commission operates.  

Additional Information and attachments

Working assumptions for the First 5 Yolo Fiscal Year 23/24-27/28 Long-Term Financial Plan are 
included as Attachment A to this item. 

Action Requested 

Review Working Assumptions for the First 5 Yolo Fiscal Year 2023/2024-2027/2028 Long-Term 
Financial Plan. 

 



Item 18: Attachment A



Item 18: Attachment A



Item 18: Attachment A



Item 18: Attachment A



Agenda Item #19 
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                             Attachments  

 
Agenda Item- Review Proposed Funding Plan FY23/24 

Background
 
First 5 Statute requires all local commissions to approve a strategic plan to guide the 
organization and requires annual updates to this plan.  A Funding Plan is incorporated into 
the First 5 Yolo Strategic Plan and is updated or adopted by the Commission by June of 
each fiscal year.   
 
Over the last five years, under the FY18/19-22/23 Strategic Plan First 5 Yolo has better 
aligned investments and program efforts, including evidence-based/best practice approaches 
to systems change and increased impact reflective of priorities in the Strategic Plan. This 
includes the recognition that greatest impact occurs early in childhood and with the child’s 
family, utilizing strategic programming, evidence-based practices, and project data, as well 
as the commitment to identifying and serving families at highest-risk. 
 
 
Executive Director Overview
 
The current Strategic Plan closes on June 30, 2023, and the Commission is in the process of 
developing its next Strategic Plan, which will be adopted in June. The Funding Plan 
proposed for Fiscal Year 23/24 reflects the Commission’s ongoing and deepened 
commitment to high-impact, strategic investments that support systems change, 
identification and support of highest-risk families, and earliest interventions utilizing 
Evidence-Based and Evidence-Informed Practices.
 
This draft Funding Plan is based on approximations of costs and anticipated partnerships, as 
well as on-going leveraged funding, to better meet the needs of children and families across 
the County.  
 
Of note are the following items:

1. Several “subprograms” of larger initiatives are listed individually to show the 
associated dollar amounts tied to funding sources. 

2. As of this report, proposed funding amounts are subject to change as additional 
information on pending leveraging opportunities unfolds. The final Funding Plan 
will be provided to the Commission during the June meeting. 

(continued on next page) 
 



Agenda Item #19 
05/10/23 

Additional Information and attachments

The proposed Funding Plan is inclusive of all anticipated program costs including grant-
funded First 5 Yolo personnel, program components that are administered in-house, as well 
as contracts with funded partners to reflect the full investment in each First 5 Yolo program. 
Annually, prior to adopting a budget, the Commission reviews the proposed Annual Budget 
as well as the proposed Funded Partner Contracts and Professional Services List. These 
three documents (Program Funding Plan, Annual Budget, and Contracts and Professional 
Services List) are complimentary in nature but do not and should not match exactly given 
their various intended purposes and formats (e.g., grant-funded personnel are included under 
the Personnel object in the Annual Budget; grant-funded personnel are included in overall 
costs associated with their respective projects in the Funding Plan; and grant-funded 
personnel are not included in the Contracts List).  
 
Attachment A includes the proposed Funding Plan for FY23/24.  
Attachment B includes a brief description of First 5 Yolo funded programs for FY23/24. 
 
Action Requested
 
Review Proposed Funding Plan for FY23/24. 
 

 
 



Item 19: Attachment A

Proposed Program Funding for Fiscal Year 2023/24 

Program funding amounts are subject to Commission approval, available public and private partner 
funding, and project needs. Additionally, the funding plan amounts and programs are subject to change 

as additional information on outstanding funding request becomes available and/or FY22/FY23 
unexpended program funds are rolled forward into FY23/24. The below figures are inclusive of best 

estimates based on currently available information.

Proposed FY23/24 Funded Programs

Initiative Proposed Funding

The CHILD Project: Road to Resilience 3,105,221

Road to Resilience 1,021,915

Welcome Baby 1,201,020

Alternative Response 155,163

CalWORKs Home Visiting Program 670,197

Home Visiting Coordination 56,926

Help Me Grow 705,000

QCC/IMPACT Early Learning 324,154

IMPACT Legacy 280,390

Childcare Recovery Package 26,083

FFN Technology Support 17,681

Attachment and Biobehavioral Catch-Up 132,000

Crisis Nursery Mobile Client Navigator 40,000

TOTAL 4,306,375



Item 19: Attachment B

First 5 Yolo Program Summary FY 23-24 

The CHILD Project: Road to Resilience (R2R)- A collaborative systems transformation project 
designed to prevent conditions that contribute to child maltreatment, prevent adverse 
childhood experiences, and provide for improved safety, health, and early experiences by 
identifying highest-risk mothers and infants and providing intensive evidence-based 
programming early. Integrated services are made possible by having a central point of 
coordination/ Project Manager based at CommuniCare Perinatal Clinics who leads a multi-
agency team of co-located in-clinic navigators and home-visitors. Healthy Families America and 
Behavioral Health Home Visitors work together as a team to provide greater access to family-
centered home visiting services that meet their needs.  

Welcome Baby-- Funded by the American Rescue Plan Act, Welcome Baby (WB) is a broad-
based home visiting initiative that serves publicly insured (e.g., Medi-Cal) or uninsured families 
immediately postpartum and creates lasting impacts for young children and families and the 
Yolo County community. WB families receive one Registered Nurse home visit in the first week 
postpartum and up to two follow-up home visits by Healthy Families America (HFA)-trained 
Community Health Workers. In these visits, WB families receive clinical assessments of the 
birthing person and baby, mental health screens, lactation consultation, evidence-based Baby 
Basics health literacy materials, and connections to community resources. WB adds a pathway 
in First 5 Yolo’s countywide The CHILD Project: Road to Resilience (R2R) to address COVID-19 
pandemic impacts. 

Alternative Response – An expansion to The CHILD Project: Road to Resilience through a 
partnership with Yolo County Health and Human Services Child, Youth, Family Division, 
Alternative Response services are aimed at providing culturally relevant Healthy Families 
America home visiting services to families identified by Child Welfare. Understanding the 
disparities that exist within Yolo County’s Child Welfare system, the program includes a focus 
on serving Black/African American Families, who are overrepresented in the system, and other 
high-risk populations.

Cal-WORKS Home Visiting Program – An expansion to The CHILD Project: Road to Resilience, 
the CalWORKs HVP expands Healthy Families America Home Visiting Services to support 
positive health, development and well- being outcomes for pregnant and parenting individuals, 
families, and infants born into poverty. This effort also includes a new home visiting option, 
Parent-Child+, approved by California Department of Social Services to target families not 
eligible for HFA. By helping families achieve stability while participating in the HVP, the program
hopes to lay the foundation for other long-term goals such as future educational opportunities, 
economic progress, and greater financial opportunities. This two-generational, whole family 
approach to service delivery will improve family engagement practices, support healthy 
development of young children living in poverty, and prepare parents for robust engagement in 
additional child and family serving systems.



Item 19: Attachment B

Home Visiting Coordination- Home Visiting Coordination funding is provided to local First 5 
agencies by First 5 CA to support both local and regional home visiting coordination efforts.  It is 
intended to provide the backbone support to engage agencies and regions in systems building 
collaboration, and to help facilitate activities that improve cross-program service coordination 
and integration into a system of support. This enables families to be served during their 
greatest need, with the most appropriate program and services to recover from the effects of 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  This grant-funded program leverages coordination efforts in Welcome 
Baby given that Welcome Baby serves as a central point of home visiting coordination for Medi-
Cal families and will focus on connection to Managed Care Plans and sustainability of services.  
First 5 Yolo is participating in a 22-county region of First 5’s with a Partnership Health Managed 
Care Plan focus.

Help Me Grow- HMG is an early childhood mental health access and linkage program that
strives to ensure children reach age-appropriate developmental milestones and improve early 
childhood mental health by increasing access to developmental, behavioral, and mental health 
services while identifying barriers to early detection and intervention. The Program is made 
possible through a partnership with Yolo County Mental Health Services Act Funding. Help Me 
grow is a systems improvement effort available to all children, including those whose families 
may have concerns or simply want to learn more about their child’s development.  This 
initiative also particularly targets children exposed to family violence, involved in Child Welfare 
Services, living in underserved areas, and/or those who are under-resourced. In addition, timely 
identification and linkage to In-Home Therapy for Caregivers is offered through CommuniCare 
Behavioral Health to provide mental health services to those who would otherwise not be 
served.

IMPACT Legacy- IMPACT (Improve and Maximize Programs and All Children Thrive) aims to 
enhance the quality of existing early childcare and preschool settings in Yolo County by 
providing training and supports inclusive of the full range of licensed and license-exempt 
providers to ensure that high-impact communities are reached. IMPACT Legacy is a part of the 
larger Quality Counts California initiative jointly funded by California Department of Education 
and First 5 California.  Yolo County Office of Education and First 5 Yolo jointly lead this initiative 
in Yolo County. Additionally, an FFN Technology Grant from the Lucille Packard Foundation 
allows Family, Friend, and Neighbor (FFN) providers to access technology supports to aid in 
bridging the digital divide to improve the quality of care provided.  

Childcare Recovery Package – Funded by Yolo County American Rescue Plan Act funds, the 
Childcare Recovery Package is aimed at supporting childcare providers across Yolo County in 
recognition of their frontline work during COVID-19 response and recovery and at improving 
infrastructure and capacity in the local childcare system through the provision of Infrastructure 
and Recover Grants given directly to childcare providers. The package also includes up to 2 
additional, larger Infrastructure Grants to address needs in childcare deserts. This, in turn, is 



Item 19: Attachment B

supportive of parents returning to and remaining in the workforce during economic recovery 
from the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Attachment and Biobehavioral Catch-up (ABC) home visiting Joint Project - ABC is an 
evidence-based home visiting, parenting intervention for caregivers of infants and toddlers who 
have experienced early adversity. It enhances children’s behavioral and regulatory capabilities 
and fosters the development of secure attachments between children and their caregivers. A 
certified ABC Parent coach offers real-time feedback to parents as they learn to bond with their 
child. Parents practice and get instant feedback on how to interact sensitively with their 
children.  This is a joint project between Child Welfare Services and First 5 Yolo and is focused 
on families at-risk of referral or referred to CWS, and families in CWS moving toward 
reunification. 

Crisis Nursery Mobile Client Navigator: Trauma informed navigation services provided by 
dedicated staff at the Yolo Crisis Nursery who provide intervention, risk assessment, safety 
planning, case management and systems navigation to adult and minor victims of family 
violence and human trafficking who have young children.  



Agenda Item #20
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
                                             Attachments   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item- Executive Director’s Report 

Background

The Executive Director updates the Commission on activities and developments. 

Executive Director Overview

 
Updates:

o County Cannabis Tax Fund Request Submitted for FY23/24 
o F5Y Executive Director Report at Board of Supervisors May 23, 2023 
o Update on CalWORKs Home Visiting Grant 
o First 5 CA IMPACT Grant Request For Application (RFA) and Delayed Timeline 
o Partnership Health Developments and Chapman Consulting Work for F5Y 
o Notification of F5Y Accounting and Office Support Specialist and Deputy Director 

Moving to Next Steps on their respective Salary Scales Following Positive Annual 
Reviews 

o First 5 Advocacy Day and Foundation for Statewide Budget Ask 
 

 
 

Additional Information and attachments 
 
 

Action Requested 
 
Receive Executive Director’s Report.
 



Agenda Item #21
05/10/23 

First 5 Yolo Children and Families Commission 
Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 
 

                                             Attachments   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item- Commissioner Reports

Background

Commissioners have the opportunity to provide updates on activities and events relating to 
their role as First 5 Yolo Commissioner and/or professional capacity in the County. 
 
Executive Director Overview
 
 

 
Additional Information and attachments 
 
 

Action Requested 
 
Receive Commissioner reports. 
 


